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Inagh and its Historical Associations
Mount Callon And  Its  Famed  Cromlech
"They said  the chase had swept the tide 

On to Lough Inagh's heath-clad side, 
And in few  moments breathless then 
We gazed on Ennistymon glen. 
A wooded  vale  before us  lay, 
Through which a river took its way— 
A mountain stream, which o'er a bed 
Of level rock, its waters shed 
In one wide sweep below, 
Careering swift by crag and stone 
Amid its torrents, random thrown, 
With eddies deep and wreaths of foam, 
Its bounding waters go?' 
(From the monks of Kilcrea: The Gleeman's Tale).
Inagh was anciently called Breintir Fearmach, that is the Brentir or boggy district. In historic times it played no prominent part, nor does it seem to have been one of the parishes of the county even in the fourteenth century, though it had two churches founded by St. Mac Creehy of Liscannor fame. Only twice does its name, Eidnach, appear in the Annals of the Four Masters, at 1573 and 1599, and in the seventeenth century (1655), it was merged in the neighbouring parishes of Rath and Dysart. - It is alluded to by Magrath in the Wars of Turlogh as the marshy land of the O'Deas, and he refers to it as a tangle of bogs and forests. Magrath describes in his inimitable flowing  language how his idol. Turlogh, fought and defeated a rival O'Brien, Brian Ruadh (1278), not, however, before the latter had ravaged Kilmaley and Clondegad. Turlogh hid in the woods of Furroor awaiting his opportunity, especially as he was expecting the aid of the MacNamaras of Clan Cuilean, and the O'Deas. He waited on at Dromgrencha. the Edenvale and Rockmount slopes, "the green-oaked. spreading boughed, clear-streamed Dromgrencha." Turlogh's chief warrior at this battle was his brother, Donal, who had to flee for his life when the Normans appeared in force to back up Brian Ruadh. Donal was overtaken. He massacred his captives and in Magrath's words fled into the shady and sweet birds abounding woods of Brentir. He eventually made his escape over the hill of Scool, escaping between Rath and Dysart. Quite close here is the stream-valley of Maurice's Mills. The learned antiquary, Westropp, has an important historical allusion to the name Maurice's Mills. He says "Maurices Mills" was named after a Maurice, either Maurice, son of Geoffry O'Connell of Ballycarbery, near Valencia, and brother of Daniel, ancestor of the Derrynane line, or his son of the same name. The elder Maurice was transplanted ■ to Brentir after 1652, his two sons were Maurice, who was in the regiment of the King's Guards, slain at the great battle of Aughrim , in 1691 (this is still traditionally remembered around Inagh), and John, a Lieutenant, in the Kings regiment, killed at the siege of Derry 1689. The last of the Brentir family died in 1749. The Inagh people say of vault in which he is buried   "Dan  O'Connell's  great grandfather, who fought at Aughrim,  is buried here."  It may be of interest to mention  here, and it is quite relevent, that  when the Friars of Ennis Abbey had escaped   the   blood-reeking   swords of the Cromwellians, some of them were given a site for a new monastery from a Maurice O'Connell in the parish of Inagh.  
MONEY   FROM   A   DREAM       
Probably the most powerful of the  family tribes who inhabited Inagh in ancient  times were the warlike  MacConcroes.      The   townland   of Skeaghvickenchroe was their stronghold    (that   is   MacEnchro's   hawthorn).   The name MacEnchro was corrupted   to   Crowe   in   the   late eighteenth    century.      The    name abounds in all parts of Clare.   This , tribe was powerful even in the 14th century,    for   with   the   O'Hehirs, O'Lees,  O'Dowals,  they fought  for Prince   Diarmuid   O'Brien   at   the great  battle   of   Corcomroe   (1317). There is  a  well-known old legend often  related  in the district  from Corofln to   Mount   Callan,   dealing with this tribe.   A synopsis of it is this:   "A   poor  old man  by  name Flann McDonogh MacEnchro lived beside   the   whitethorn.     He   was obsessed by a dream which told him to go to the Bald Bridge of Limerick and he would  find a  considerable sum of money.    So he set out one day   for Limerick   and   started to walk   backwards   and forwards   on the bridge.    Eventually he   got so tired and exhausted that he cursed his folly for quitting his snug cabin on Mount Callan on a hopeless adventure.    A  cobbler   observed him and asked him what was troubling him.    McDonogh  explained  all   to him,  whereupon   the  cobbler   said that he also constantly dreamt that if he went to a place in Co. Clare called 'Skaghvickincrow,'  he would find lots of money.   McDonogh re​turned   home   at   once   and   com​menced digging at one side of the hawthorn.   The spade struck some​thing like a flag.   When he raised the flag there was nothing under it but ordinary soil.   He carried it in to the cabin.    It had some letters of an. unusual kind cut upon it, but they were a mystery to the learned of Inagh.   One evening, however, a schoolmaster turned in to the hut of   McDonagh.    He   examined   the lettering carefully and read out an Irish expression, which in English meant: 'one side is more lucky than the other side.' McDonogh remained silent, but on the departure of his guest    next    morning   he   started digging   at   the other side of   the hawthorn bush where he unearthed as much money as made a wealthy man of himself and his decendants."
MOUNT CALLAN
It is safe to state that this mountain or rather the Cromlech on its summit has given rise to more discussion amongst the archeologists and antiquarians than probably any other area in the country. The first to inaugurate the controversy was Michael Comyn, a Clareman, steeped in the history and folklore of his native county. He wrote a novel in 1748 called "The Three Sons of Thoraibh MacStairn." In the course of the narrative he tells how the "Three Sons" were brought to Mt. Callan. He describes that after killing a peist (a reptile), it was customary every third year to offer a sacrifice to the Sun upon an altar which was called Althoir na Greine (altar of the Sun) and which was constructed of ice-plate-like grey flags. Two other writers who refer to Sun-worship on Mt. Callan were the celebrated hedge-school master John Lloyd, and an antiquary by name Theophilus O'Flanagan. They all wrote about the Cromlech on the Summit. It was alluded to as a very large and remarkable sepulchral stone of very great antiquity, and discovered around the early eighteenth century. This stone bears the inscription in the ancient Ogham character, having the peculiarity of being read in five different ways, to the memory of the Chief Conan, a renowned warrior of the Fenians, and who was said to have been slain at an assembly held for worship of the Sun on the high slopes of Callan mountain. O'Flanagan it was, who gave this interpretation to the let​ters carved on the stone, maintain​ing that sun-worship was prevalent here in ancient times. The renow​ned Irish scholars, one a Clareman, Professor Eugene O'Curry, and Dr. O'Donovan, vigorously denounced O'Flanagan's interpretation. But the most vehement denouncer of all was one who was born within a stone throw of it, the very brilliant and profound Irish scholar, Professor Brian O'Looney. He visited the place twice in 1844, and again in 1859. His reading of the inscription is just this—"Under this stone is laid Conan, the fierce and turbulent."
There is no mention whatever about fire or sun-worship in O'Looney's version. There is a most interesting letter of O'Looney's to his friend, Sir Samuel Ferguson, preserved in the Royal Irish Academy, Dublin, dealing with the whole question of this old Cromlech on the summit of  Mount Callan. By the way, Crom​lechs, common all over Clare, are referred to by the ordinary people as giants' graves. A brief synopsis of O'Looney's letter will, we feel sure interest our readers. Great assemblies or festivals were held on Mount Callan three times in the year, on Easter Sunday, St. Patrick's Day and Lammas Day (1st August). On Easter Sunday all proceeded to the summit to make their Pruachais Casca or Easter feast of eggs, oat​meal bread and new Easter Ale. On these occasions also, they held their Easter Conversazione on the topics of the day, and to open the sports of the season with a chorus of bag​pipes and a moneen dance. On St. Patrick's Day, the people came together there to drink their Pota Padraig or Patrick's pot of good old poteen and Beoir Marta or March Beer.
OLD BANK HOLIDAY

 Lammas Day, 1st August, was first-fruits day and a very special great festival day on Buaille na Greine, that is, the plain of the sun, or sunny plain, high up on the slopes of the hill. On Garland Sunday, the Sunday nearest the 1st day of August, every householder was expected   to   feast   his  family  and household  on  the  first  fruits, and XXXXXXXXX was looked on as a Felemuir Gaoithe or wind farmer, so too if a farmer dug new potatoes before Garland Sunday, he was re​garded as a needy man. It is interesting to note here that Professor O'Looney himself was present on Mount Callan on Lammas Day, 1844, always referred to as First Fruits Day, or Garland Sunday. Those who assembled brought with them their contributions, their lons (pro​visions). It was held as usual on Buaile na Greine. The ceremonies opened with the strewing of flowers and blossoms on the great mound of Buaile na Greine. The ceremon​ies were evidently on the wane when O'Looney was present, as he says the gathering consisted mainly of mere boys, but his testimony is invaluable. In his declining years, this great and brilliant scholar who had been a Professor in the old Catholic University in Dublin, re​sided in a lovely residence called Grove Villa, in what was then a suburb of Dublin, Crumlin. There he died in December, 1901, and was buried in Glasnevin. There are many old people still living in the Crumlin district who have vivid memories of the old kindly professor.
TRAP FOR TOURiSTS
Before quitting Mount Callan, it is of more than passing interest to mention that just over 100 years ago, a tourist who was having a glimpse at the glamour of the West Clare coast was persuaded to have a look at the Cromlech on Mount Callan. She tells us of a peculiar custom prevailing in the district. When driving past a cottage where young girls were spinning wool or knitting, one of them would suddenly rush across the road, holding a thread which was held by another at the opposite end, and a small donation was expected from the passenger. The driver, not at all wanting in politeness to his female friends, pulls up, being reluctant to break the thread. The demand made in Irish was for something to buy oil or to forward the work. On a trifle being given the obstacle was withdrawn and the party proceeded. This ceremony generally took place at every cottage, if the inhabitants got wind of the word in time that tourists were around.
The Catholic clergy and the more staid individuals amongst the laity were opposed to a continuance of those gatherings on certain days on Mount Callan and they strongly advised that a cessation should be put to them. At the same time the people were encouraged to transfer their assemblies and to have a 'patron' or 'pattern' as the ordinary people call it, at the holy well of St. Muchan or St. Mooghan near Ennistymon, and within a mile and a half of Lahinch. Gradually the people became accustomed to the transfer. The 'patron' was sub​sequently removed to Leacht (Tomb), Ui Conchubhair, now La​hinch, where the O'Connor clan were in the habit of meeting to celebrate the mourning assembly of their chieftain, O'Connor, King of West Corcomroe. The site of O'Connor's Leacht or Tomb was on the spot where the Victoria Hotel in Lahinch stood.
In the year 1859 a farmer had built a temporary residence near the Cromlech on Mount Callan. He possessed a small cabbage garden, and in order to fence it he broke up Altoir na Greine (Altar of the Sun). The stones were in subsequent years taken   from,   bounding the  garden
